
Northern Inyo Hospital

March 18 2015 Regular Meeting
March 18 2015 Regular Meeting - March 18 2015 Regular Meeting

Agenda

District Board Agenda, 3-18-15 Regular Meeting

Minutes

Minutes,  February 9 2015 Special Meeting
Minutes, February 10 2015 Special Meeting
Minutes, February 18 2015 Regular Meeting
Minutes, 2-25-15 Special Meeting

Financial and Statistical Reports, January 2015

Financial and Statistical Reports for January 2015

Letter from Senator Berryhill

Letter of Congratulations from Senator Berryhill

Chief of Staff Report

Chief of Staff Report for March 2015

Policy Approval, Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process

Policy & Procedure, Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process

Obstetrical Services Agreement with Martha Kim

Obstetrical Services Agreement, Martha Kim

Obstetrical Services Agreement, Lara Jeanine Arndal

Arndal Obstetrical Services Agreement, 4-30-15

Hospitalist Services Agreement, Felix Karp

Hospitalist Services Agreement, Felix Karp

.....................................................2

...............................................................5
..............................................................7
.............................................................9

.............................................................................10

................................................15

...................................................22

.......................................................................23

.............60

.........................................................64

....................................................75

...........................................................88

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

March 18, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
In the Jill Kinmont Boothe School Great Room at 166 Grandview Drive, Bishop, CA 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 p.m.).          

2. At this time persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter 

within the jurisdiction of the District Board.  (Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 

address the Board on every item on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to a maximum of two 

minutes each.) 

 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                       Consent Agenda (action items) 
 

3. Approval of minutes of the February 9 2015 special meeting  

4. Approval of minutes of the February 10 2015 special meeting 

5. Approval of minutes of the February 18 2015 regular meeting 

6. Approval of minutes of the February 25 2015 special meeting 

7. Financial and Statistical reports for January 2015 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

8. Chief Executive Officer’s Report; Victoria Alexander-Lane.   

A.  Physician Recruitment update               C.  Letter from Senator Berryhill 

B.  Hospitalist program update D.  FMLA discussion, history and current policy 

9. Chief of Staff Report; Thomas Boo, M.D. 

A. Policy and Procedure approvals (action items): 

1. Standardized Procedure:  Certified Nurse Midwives First Assisting During Cesarean 

Section 

2. Policy/Procedure:  Sexual Assault Exam Policy 

3. Policy/Procedure:  Code Blue Procedure – Code Blue Team 

4. Policy/Procedure:  Gait Belt Policy 

5. Policy/Procedure:  Patient Food from Non-Hospital Sources 

6. Policy/Procedure:  Infection Prevention Plan 

7. Policy/Procedure:  Dishes in Staff Break Room Areas 



Page, 2, Agenda, NICLHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, March 18, 2015 
 
 
             B.  Clinical Diet Manual approval (action item). 

10. Chief Nursing Officer Report (information item). 

11. Old Business 

A.  Policy and Procedure approval, Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process (action  

      item). 

      12.  New Business 

           A.  Approval of NIH Foundation Board member Carol Hice (action item). 

           B.  Determination of Board meeting dates for 2015 (action item). 

           C.  Strategic Plan Update (information item). 

           D.  Approval of the Northern Inyo Hospital final Audit Report for fiscal year ending June 30, 2014,  

                 from Wipfli LLP (action item). 

     13.  Reports from Board members (information items): 

            A.  ACHD Board Nominations 

     14. Adjournment to closed session to/for: 

           A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the responsible department  

                head and the Medical Staff Executive Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety  

                Code, and Section 54962 of the Government Code).  

           B.  Discuss trade secrets, new programs and services (Section 32106 of the Health and Safety  

                 Code).  

            C.  Discussion of Agreement for Obstetrical Services, Marty Kim, M.D. (Government  

                  Code Section 54957 

D. Discussion of Agreement for Obstetrical Services, Jeanine Arndal, M.D. (Government  

Code Section 54957). 

E. Discussion of Agreement for Hospitalist Services, Felix Karp, M.D. (Government Code 

Section 54957). 

F. Discussion of potential litigation (Government Code section 54956(d)(2)). 

     15.  Return to open session, and report of any action taken in closed session.   

     16.  Approval of agreement for Obstetrical Services, Marty Kim, M.D. (action item). 

     17.  Approval of agreement for Obstetrical Services, Jeanine Arndal, M.D. (action item). 

     18.  Approval of Hospitalist Services Agreement, Felix Karp, M.D. (action item). 

     19.  Adjournment.     

 

3/16/2015, 9:20 AM 



Page, 3, Agenda, NICLHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, March 18, 2015 
 
 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 
participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

3/16/2015, 9:20 AM 



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors     February 9, 2015 
Special Meeting                   Page 1 of 2 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by M.C. Hubbard, President. 
 

NORTHERN INYO 
COUNTY LOCAL 
HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
BOARD MEMBERS 
PRESENT 
 
NORTHERN INYO 
HOSPITAL 
FOUNDATION BOARD 
MEMBERS (OR 
PROSPECTIVE BOARD 
MEMBERS) PRESENT 

M.C. Hubbard, President 
Denise Hayden, Vice President  
D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 
Peter Watercott, Treasurer 
John Ungersma, M.D., Member At Large   
 
Debbie Core 
Carol Hice 
Kris Hohag 
Caddy Jackson 
Mary Mae Kilpatrick 
Richard Meredick, M.D. 
Kay O’Brien 
Carolyn Tiernan, M.D. 
Peter Watercott 

 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
COMBINED MEETING 
OF NIH AND NIH 
FOUNDATION BOARDS 
OF DIRECTORS 
 
 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 

 
Victoria Alexander-Lane, Chief Executive Officer 
Greg Bissonette, NIH Foundation Executive Director 
Thomas Boo, M.D., Chief of NIH Medical Staff 
Chuck Kilpatrick, Community member 
Kathy Decker, NIH Chief Nursing Officer 
Leo Freis, NIH Chief Operations Officer/Chief Information Officer 
Carrie Petersen, NIH Chief of Fiscal Services 
Maria Sirois, NIH Chief Performance Excellence Officer 
Georgan Stottlemyre, NIH Chief of Human Relations 
 
Ms. Hubbard asked if any members of the public wished to comment on 
any items listed on the Notice for this meeting, or on any items of interest.  
No comments were heard. 
 
The meeting opened with an introduction of all Board members and 
Northern Inyo Hospital representatives present.   Northern Inyo Hospital 
(NIH) Chief Executive Officer Victoria Alexander-Lane presented the 
Hospital District’s Strategic Plan for 2015, explaining the mission and 
intent of the Plan. 
 
Open discussion then took place regarding how both Boards can work 
together and with the community in an effort to achieve common goals. 
 
Ms. Hubbard again asked if any members of the public wished to 
comment on any items listed on the notice for this meeting.  No comments 
were heard. 
 



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors     February 9, 2015 
Special Meeting                   Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:32pm. 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 
M.C. Hubbard, President 

 
 
 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors       February 10, 2015 
Special Meeting                 Page 1 of 2 
 
CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by M.C. Hubbard, President. 

 
PRESENT M.C. Hubbard, President 

Denise Hayden, Vice President  
D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 
John Ungersma, M.D., Member at Large 

 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
ABSENT 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Victoria Alexander-Lane, Chief Executive Officer 
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 
 
Peter Watercott, Treasurer 
Thomas Boo, M.D., Chief of Staff 
 
Ms. Hubbard asked if any members of the public wished to comment on 
any items listed on the Notice for this meeting.  Considering the number 
of persons present, Ms. Hubbard requested that public comments be kept 
to a maximum of two minutes. 
 
At this time, the following persons spoke regarding concerns about 
Hospital management issues; personnel issues; and union formation: 
 

- Christine Hanley, RN 
- Richard Hanley 
- Anne Gasior, M.D. 
- Susan Tonelli, R.N. 

 
At 5:37pm, Ms. Hubbard announced that the meeting would adjourn to 
closed  session to allow the Board of Directors to: 

A. Conference regarding Labor Negotiations pursuant to Government 
Code Section 454957.6. Agency representative Victoria 
Alexander-Lane, Employees:  RN’s; Midlevel Practitioners.  

 
At 7:05pm the meeting returned to open session.  Ms. Hubbard reported 
the Board took no reportable action. 
 
 
Ms. Hubbard again asked if anyone present wished to address the Board 
of Directors on any items described on the Notice for this meeting.  The 
following persons spoke (or made inquiries) regarding a variety of 
concerns related employee issues, management, or about the formation of 
a union within the nursing department: 
 

- Michael Dillon, M.D. 
- Jennifer Scott. M.D. 
- Eva Judson, R.N. 
- Anne Gasior, M.D. 
- Greg Lippincott 



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors       February 10, 2015 
Special Meeting                 Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

- Daniel Cowan, M.D. 
- Maura Richman, R.N. 
- Heleen Welvaart, RN 
- Laurie Archer, RN 

 
In addition to the Board of Directors, the following members of hospital 
management either provided input or responded to questions and concerns 
that were presented: 
 

- Victoria Alexander-Lane, Chief Executive Officer 
- Kathy Decker, RN, Chief Nursing Officer 
- Barbara Smith, RN, Medical Surgical Unit Nurse Manager 
- Maria Sirois, Chief Performance Excellence Officer 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:21pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 

________________________________________ 
M.C. Hubbard, President 

 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 





Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors       February 25, 2015 
Special Meeting                 Page 1 of 5 
 
CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:32 pm by M.C. Hubbard, President. 

 
PRESENT M.C. Hubbard, President 

Denise Hayden, Vice President  
D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 
Peter Watercott, Treasurer 
John Ungersma, M.D., Member at Large 

 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
 
FINAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING JUNE 30 2015, 
WIPFLI LLP 
 
ALPHA FUND AWARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Victoria Alexander-Lane, Chief Executive Officer 
Thomas Boo, M.D., Chief of Staff 
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 
 
Ms. Hubbard introduced Jeff Johnson and Eric Volk with Wipfli LLP, 
who were in attendance to present the final audit report for Northern Inyo 
Hospital (NIH) for the fiscal year ending June 30 2014.  An in-depth 
presentation was provided, followed by a question and answer period. 
 
Chief Human Relations Officer Georgan Stottlemyre reported the 
Hospital recently received the Alpha Fund Champions Award for 2014, 
for improvements made in the areas of patient safety and employee safety.  
As the Champions Award recipient the Hospital also received a check in 
the amount of $5,000.  The Board thanked NIH management and staff for 
their efforts in making the hospital a safer workplace for employees and 
for creating a safer environment for our patients.   
 
Ms. Hubbard then asked if any members of the public wished to comment 
on any items listed on the Notice for this meeting and/or on any items of 
interest.  The following persons spoke during this public comment 
opportunity: 

- Becky Taylor 
- Christine Hanley, RN 
- Eric Richman, OD 
- Cindy Wahrenbrock, EKG Tech 
- Lynne Greer 
- Anne Gasior, M.D. 
- Michael Dillon, M.D. 
- Claudia Buchanan 
- Nita Eddy, Surgery Tech 
- Barbara Stuhaan, R.N. 

 
At the conclusion of this public comment opportunity, Ms. Hubbard 
apologized for the fact that the venue for this meeting was not large 
enough to accommodate the number of people who chose to attend.  She 
also addressed a misconception that the general public is not allowed to 
speak to the Hospital Board of Directors, pointing out that that is exactly 
what just took place and what is allowed for (pursuant to the Ralph M. 
Brown Act) at every meeting of the Hospital District Board.  Ms. Hubbard 



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors       February 25, 2015 
Special Meeting                 Page 2 of 5 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CEO REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF OF STAFF 
REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

additionally commented that if members of the public have questions or 
concerns about hospital business, they can also individually contact their 
representative on the District Board if they choose to do so. 
 
Ms. Hubbard then called attention to the Consent Agenda for this 
meeting, which contained the following items: 

- Approval of minutes of the January 14 2015 special meeting 
- Approval of minutes of the January 21 2015 regular meeting 
- Approval of the financial and statistical reports for December 

2014 
Following review of the information provided it was moved by John 
Ungersma, M.D., seconded by D. Scott Clark, M.D. and unanimously 
passed to approve the proposed Consent Agenda items as presented. 
 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Victoria Alexander-Lane reported that a 
prospective general surgeon will come to visit Northern Inyo Hospital in 
the next week.  She additionally noted that an additional Physician’s 
Assistant has been hired for the NIH Rural Health Clinic (RHC) and will 
start seeing patients in April.  The new employee will provide same day 
visits for patients who have need to see a practitioner unexpectedly and as 
soon as possible.  Ms. Lane additionally noted that a Physician’s Assistant 
has also been hired to help out in the pediatric office, and that Hospital 
management continues to recruit for an additional hospitalist physician.   
She also reported that the Hospital’s Green Committee continues to make 
improvements in areas related to recycling and changing to using 
environmentally-friendly products.  She additionally stated that she 
recently attended the California Hospital Association annual conference in 
Redondo Beach, which proved to be a valuable and educational 
experience.   
 
Chief of Staff Thomas Boo, M.D. reported that following careful review 
and consideration and approval by the appropriate Committees, the 
Medical Executive Committee recommends approval of the following 
Medical Staff appointments, privileging, and resignations: 

1. Peter Bloomfield, M.D.:  Appointment to the NIH Provisional 
Active Medical Staff 

2. John Williamson, M.D.:  Appointment to the NIH Provisional 
Consulting Medical Staff 

3. Privileging of Colleen McEvoy, P-NP to function according to the 
NIH Standardized Procedures as requested through December 31, 
2016 

4. Advancement to Active Medical Staff for Richard Meredick, 
M.D., with clinical privileges as requested 

5. Acceptance of the resignations of Victor Lopez-Cuenca, M.D., and 
Theodore Berndt, M.D. 

Dr. Boo additionally stated that following careful review and 
consideration and approval by the appropriate Committees, the Medical  
 



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors       February 25, 2015 
Special Meeting                 Page 3 of 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF NURSING 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
DIETARY MANUAL 
APPROVAL 
 
 
REVISED DISTRICT 
BYLAWS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Executive Committee also recommends approval of the following hospital 
wide policies and procedures: 

1. Smoking Cessation 
2. Emergency Care Policy for the Nurse Practitioner and Certified 

Nurse Midwife – RHC Standardized Procedure 
3. Management of Acute Illness – RHC Standardized Procedure 
4. Management of Chronic Illness – RHC Standardized Procedure 
5. Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the Nurse Practitioner, 

RHC Standardized Procedure 
6. General Policy for Rural Health Clinic Nurse Practitioner, RHC 

Standardized Procedure 
7. Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing, RHC Standardized Procedure 
8. Minor Surgical Procedures, RHC Standardized Procedure 
9. Management of Minor Trauma, RHC Standardized Procedure 
10. Well Child Care, RHC Standardized Procedure 
11. Barcode Medication Administration, Pharmacy 
12. Controlled Security Prescription Paper, Pharmacy 
13. Sterile Products: Compounding Quality Assurance Program, 

Pharmacy 
At that time it was moved by Denise Hayden, seconded by Doctor 
Ungersma, and unanimously passed to approve the list of Medical Staff 
appointments, privileging, and resignations as presented.  It was then 
moved by Ms. Hayden, seconded by Doctor Ungersma, and passed to 
unanimously approve the list (1 through 13) of policies and procedures as 
presented, with one housekeeping change being made to the policy titled 
Management of Minor Trauma, RHC Standardized Procedure. 
 
Chief Nursing Officer Kathy Decker, RN provided a report and update on 
recent Nursing Department projects, achievements, and activities. 
 
 
 
Ms. Alexander-Lane reported that approval of the Dietary Department 
Manual will be listed on the agenda for a future meeting of the District 
Board, after it has been approved by the Medical Executive Committee. 
 
Ms. Hubbard then called attention to approval of the revised Northern 
Inyo County Local Hospital District Bylaws, as recommended by the 
Bylaws Committee composed of Directors Ungersma and Hubbard, and 
Hospital CEO Victoria Alexander-Lane.  Following review of the 
information provided it was moved by Ms. Hayden, seconded by Doctor 
Ungersma and unanimously passed to approve the revised Bylaws as 
presented, with Doctor Clark being absent from the vote.  It was noted 
that the revised Bylaws allow greater flexibility in regard to the 
scheduling of Board meetings, and that they also include a name change 
reference to the Northern Inyo Local Healthcare District. 
 



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors       February 25, 2015 
Special Meeting                 Page 4 of 5 
 
DONATION OF 
MODULAR BUILDINGS 
(2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE 
APPROVAL, 
EMPLOYEE 
COMPLAINTS AND THE 
GRIEVANCE PROCESS 
 
 
 
PREFERRED PROVIDER 
AGREEMENT FOR 
CRITICAL CARE 
TRANSPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD RESOLUTION 
15-01, EMPLOYER/ 
EMPLOYEE 
RELATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER 
REPORTS 
 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 

 
Ms. Alexander-Lane then called attention to approval of the donation of 
two modular buildings located on Hospital property to the Tri-County 
Fairgrounds.  The buildings are no longer of use to the Healthcare District 
and their removal will cut heating and cooling waste and help create room 
for future RHC expansion.  It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded 
by Peter Watercott and unanimously passed to approve the donation of the 
two modular buildings by those Directors present, with Doctor Clark 
being absent from the vote. 
 
Chief Human Relations Officer Georgan Stottlemyre called attention to 
approval of a hospital wide policy and procedure titled Employee 
Complaints and the Grievance Process, and provided an explanation of 
proposed changes to the policy.  Following review and discussion of the 
information provided, it was moved by Doctor Ungersma to approve the 
proposed policy, however the policy was not passed due to lack of a 
second and due to the absence of a majority vote (with Director Clark 
being absent from the discussion and from the vote). 
 
Ms. Alexander-Lane then introduced Mike Patterson with Sierra 
Lifeflight, who presented a proposal to make Sierra Lifeflight the 
Hospital's preferred critical care patient transport provider.  Following 
brief discussion of the company's history of service to the Hospital and to 
this community it was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Ms. 
Hayden, and unanimously passed to approved the proposed Preferred 
Provider Agreement with Sierra Life Flight as presented, with Doctor 
Clark being absent from the vote. 
 
Chief Human Relations Officer Georgan Stottlemyre called attention to 
Board Resolution 15-01 relating to employer/employee relations as an 
information item only, stating that a Resolution such as this possibly 
should have been put in place by Hospital Administration in the past.  
Director Watercott noted that due to a personal conflict of interest he is 
not able to be in the room during any part of discussions on employer-
employee relations.  It was additionally noted that the information on this 
subject was provided for management by District Legal Counsel. 
 
Ms. Hubbard then asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished 
to comment on any items of interest.  Director Hayden provided an update 
on the activities and recent actions taken by the Inyo County Local 
Transportation Commission, in particular relating to transportation aid for 
Hospital District patients. 
 
Ms. Hubbard again asked if any members of the public wished to 
comment on any items listed on the Notice for this meeting.  Barbara 
Stuhaan, RN requested further explanation on potential conflicts of 
interest that Board members may have regarding discussion of 
employer/employee relations.  No other comments were heard. 



Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors       February 25, 2015 
Special Meeting                 Page 5 of 5 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 
  
At 8:34pm Ms. Hubbard reported the meeting would adjourn to closed 
session to allow the Board of Directors to/for: 
A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the 

responsible department head and the Medical Staff Executive 
Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety Code, and 
Section 54962 of the Government Code). 

B. Discussion regarding a claim filed by Theresa Woyame against 
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District (Government Code 
Section 54956.9(a)). 

C. Discuss trade secrets, new programs and services (Section 32106 of 
the Health and Safety Code). 

D. Board only discussion regarding hospital quality (Section 32155 of 
the Health and Safety Code, and Section 54962 of the Government 
Code) Dr. Ungersma. 
 

At 9:58pm the meeting returned to open session.  Ms. Hubbard reported 
that the Board took no reportable action. 
 
Ms. Hubbard again asked if any members of the public wished to address 
the Board of Directors on any items of interest. No comments were heard. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:59pm. 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 
 

 
________________________________________ 
M.C. Hubbard, President 

 
 
 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  Denise Hayden, Vice President 





































































































 

 
 NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL PRIVATE PRACTICE PHYSICIAN 

INCOME GUARANTEE AND PRACTICE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT  

 

This agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on 4/30/2015, by and between Northern 
Inyo County Local Healthcare District (“District) and Martha Kim, M.D. (“Physician”).  

  
RECITALS  

A.  District, which is organized and exists under the California Local Health Care District 
Law, Health & Safety Code Section 32000, et seq., operates Northern Inyo Hospital 
(“Hospital”), a general acute care hospital serving northern Inyo County, California, 
including the communities of Bishop and Big Pine.  

B.  The District Board of Directors has found, by Resolution No. 09-01, that it will be in the 
best interests of the public health of the aforesaid communities to obtain a licensed 
Obstetrician Gynecologist (“OB/GYN”) to practice in said communities, on the terms and 
conditions and surgeon who is a board-certified/eligible specialist in the practice of 
obstetrics and set forth below.  

C.  Physician is a physician and surgeon, engaged in the private practice of medicine, licensed 
to practice medicine in the State of California, certified by the American Board of 
Obstetrics and Gynecology. Physician desires to relocate his/her practice ("Practice") to 
Bishop, California, and practice OB/GYN in the aforesaid communities.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

 
I.  

COVENANTS OF PHYSICIAN  

 
Physician shall locate her Practice to Rural Health Clinic (“Offices”) provided by District in 

Bishop, California. Physician shall operate her practice for the “Term” (as such term is defined in 
Section 4.01 below) of this Agreement, and provide and comply with the following:  

1.01.  Services. Physician shall provide Hospital with the benefit of her direct patient care expertise and 
experience, and shall render the scope of services described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference herein. Physician shall provide Hospital with patient medical record 
documentation of all direct patient care services rendered hereunder; such documentation shall be 
submitted to Hospital on an ongoing basis, and shall be in the form, and contain the information, 
reasonably requested by the Hospital such that a complete medical record can be assembled.  

1.02.  Limitation on Use of Space. Physician shall use no part of any of the Offices for anything other 
than for the private practice of OB/GYN medicine unless specifically agreed to, in writing, by the 
parties.  

 
1 

 



 

1.03.    Medical Staff Membership and Service:  Physician shall:  

a) Apply for and maintain Provisional or Active Medical Staff (“Medical Staff”) membership 
with OB/GYN and OB/GYN surgical privileges sufficient to support a full time OB/GYN 
practice, for the Term of this Agreement.  

b) Provide on-call coverage to the Hospital’s Emergency Services within the scope of privileges 
granted to him by Hospital and as required by the Hospital Medical Staff. Physician shall not 
be required to provide more than fifty percent (50%) of the annual call in weekly increments 
unless otherwise agreed upon from time to time. Physician shall be solely responsible for call 
coverage for his personal private practice.  

c) Maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to all costs and expenses 
incurred, and revenue acquired, pursuant to this Agreement to the extent, and in such detail, 
as will properly reflect all net costs, direct and indirect, of labor, materials, equipment, 
supplies, and services, and other costs and expenses of whatever nature, for which he may 
claim payment or reimbursement from the District. Physician acknowledges and agrees that 
any federal office authorized by law shall have access, for the purpose of audit and 
examination, to any books, documents, papers, and records of Physician which are relevant to 
this Agreement, at all reasonable times for a period of four (4) years following the 
termination of this Agreement, during which period Physician shall preserve and maintain 
said books, documents, papers, and records. Physician further agrees to transfer to the 
District, upon termination of this Agreement, any books, documents, papers or records which 
possess long-term [i.e., more than four (4) years] value to the Hospital. Physician shall 
include a clause providing similar access in any sub-contract he may enter with a value of 
more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) or for more than a twelve (12) month period, 
when said sub-contract is with a related organization.  

d) At all times comply with all relevant policies, rules and regulations of the Hospital, subject to 
California and federal statutes governing the practice of medicine.  

e) District expressly agrees that said services might be performed by such other qualified 
physicians as the Physician may employ or otherwise provide so long as each such physician 
has received proper training, is properly licensed, has been granted privileges by the Hospital 
Medical Staff, and has received approval in writing from the Hospital.  

 

II. COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT  

2.01. Hospital Services.  

a)  Space. District shall make the Offices available for the operation of Physician’s Practice 
either through a direct let or through and arrangement with a landlord.  

b)  Equipment. In consultation with Physician, Hospital shall provide all equipment as may be 
reasonably necessary for the proper operation and conduct of Physician's Practice at the 
Offices. Hospital shall repair, replace or supplement such equipment and maintain it in good 
working order.  

 
 

2 

 



 

 
 
2.02.  General Services. District shall furnish ordinary janitorial services, maintenance services, and 
utilities,       including telephone service, as may be required for the proper operation and conduct of 
Physician’s Practice 
 
 
 
2.03.  Supplies. District shall purchase and provide all supplies as may be reasonably required for the 

proper treatment of Physician’s Practice patients. Physician shall inform Hospital of supply needs 
in a timely manner and shall manage the use of supplies in an efficient manner that promotes 
quality and cost-effective patient care.  

2.04.  Personnel. District shall determine the initial number and types of employees and place them in 
the Practice. Physician will approve of all hires that work directly with the physician.  

2.05.  Business Operations. District shall be responsible for all business operations related to operation 
of the Practice, including personnel management, billing and payroll functions. Physician will 
provide the appropriate billing codes, which will be used unless changed by the mutual consent 
of the Physician and Hospital. Hospital will incur and pay all operating expenses of the Practice.  

2.06.  Hospital Performance. The responsibilities of District under this Article shall be subject to 
District’s usual purchasing practices and applicable laws and regulations.  

2.07.  Practice Hours. The District desires, and Physician agrees, that Physician’s Practice shall 
operate on a full time basis, maintaining hours of operation in keeping with the full time practice 
of one OB/GYN surgeon while permitting a surgery schedule sufficient to service the patients of 
the Practice. Specific shifts will be scheduled according to normal operating procedures of the 
Practice and will be mutually agreed upon by Hospital and Physician.  

Physician will specifically provide a total of 42 weeks per year allocated, on an annual and 
concurrent basis, as follows:  

• 26 weeks of GYN call/ 20 weeks of OB/C-Section call. (OB/C-Section call can be 
increased to 20-26    weeks at Hospital’s discretion);  

• 42 weeks of clinic service; and  

• 26 weeks of surgical services.  
 

1 (one) week a year for volunteer with Mammoth Medical Missions 
 
1 (one) week for CME 

 
Physician shall receive 8 weeks per year paid time off during which time Physician must 
accomplish absence hours-such as vacation, illness, jury duty, bereavement, etc.  

Physician agrees to coordinate his/her schedule with any other physician(s) contracted by the 
Hospital for like services. 

 
3 

 



 

 
III.  

COMPENSATION  

3.01. Minimum Income Guarantee. At all times during the Term of this Agreement, including any 
extensions or renewals hereof, District, District shall guarantee Physician an annual income of no 
less than $295,625.20 (“Minimum Income Guarantee”). Compensation from District shall be 
payable to Physician at the higher of (a) the Minimum Income Guarantee amount paid at the rate 
of $11,370.20 every two (2) weeks, or (b) 50% of fees collected for services rendered in Section 
II, adjusted quarterly after the first year to reflect 50% of fees collected so that payments will not 
exceed the minimum guarantee unless 50% of the fees exceed the guarantee on an annualized 
basis. Additionally, Physician will be entitled to a $500 per day stipend for taking any C-Section 
call in excess of 20 weeks per year. All payments shall be made on the same date as the District 
normally pays its employees. The Minimum Income Guarantee amount will be increased at the 
same time, in the same manner and at the same rate as the Hospital’s employees.  

3.02. Malpractice Insurance. At all times during the Term of this Agreement, including any extensions 
or renewals hereof, physician will secure and maintain malpractice insurance for the benefit of 
the physician with limits of no less than $1 million per occurrence and $3 million per year. 
Hospital shall reimburse 100% of malpractice costs.  

 
3.03. Health Insurance. At all times during the Term of this Agreement, including any extensions or 

renewals hereof, Physician will be (i) admitted to the Hospital's self-funded Medical Dental 
Vision Benefit Plan and be provided the benefits contained therein as if she were an employee of 
District.  

 
3.04. Signing Bonus. Physician will receive $5000.00 from District upon signing this Agreement, which 

amount shall belong solely to Physician and shall not be subject to re-payment under any 
circumstances. This payment is in addition to all amounts due Physician this Agreement.  

 
3.05. Billing for Professional Services. Subject to Section 2.05 above, Physician assigns to District all 

claims, demands and rights of Physician to bill and collect for all professional services rendered 
to Practice patients, for all billings for surgical services, for all billings consulting performed or 
provided by the Physician. Physician acknowledges that Hospital shall be solely responsible for 
billing and collecting for all professional services provided by Physician to Practice patients at 
Practice and for all surgical services performed at the District, and for managing all Practice 
receivables and payables, including those related to Medicare and MediCal beneficiaries. 
Physician shall not bill or collect for any services rendered to Practice patients or Hospital 
patients, and all Practice receivables and billings shall be the sole and exclusive property of 
Practice. In particular, any payments made pursuant to a payer agreement (including co-payments 
made by patients) shall constitute revenue of the Practice. In the event payments are made to 
Physician pursuant to any payer agreement, Physician shall promptly remit the payments directly 
to District.  

3.6 Retention. Hospital shall retain an amount equal to 50% of all fees collected from the activities of 
physician/practice in exchange for providing all services and supplies rendered in II above.  

4 

 



 

 
IV.  

TERM AND TERMINATION  

4.01. Term. The term (“Term”) of this Agreement shall be three (3) years beginning at 12:01 a.m. on 
6/1/2015 and expiring at 12:00 p.m. on 5/31/2018.  

4.02. Termination. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.01, this Agreement may be terminated:  

a). By Hospital or Physician at any time, without cause or penalty, upon one hundred and 
eighty (180) days’ prior written notice to the Hospital;  

b). Immediately by Hospital in its sole discretion if Physician fails to maintain the 
professional standards described in Article V of this Agreement;  

c). Immediately upon permanent closure of the Hospital;  

d). By either party upon written notice to the other party in the event that any federal, 
state or local government or agency passes, issues or promulgates any law, rule, regulation, 
standard or interpretation at any time while this Agreement is in effect that prohibits, 
substantially restricts, substantially limits or in any way substantially changes the arrangement 
contemplated herein or which otherwise significantly affects either party’s rights or obligations 
under this Agreement; provided that in such event, Hospital must give notice to Physician equal 
to that provided to Hospital by the relevant federal, state or local government or agency. If this 
Agreement can be amended to the satisfaction of both parties to compensate for any such 
prohibition, restriction, limitation or change, this clause shall not be interpreted to prevent such 
amendment; or  

e). By either party in the event of a material breach by the other party and, in such event, 
the non-breaching party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement after providing thirty 
(30) days’ written notice to the breaching party, unless such breach is cured to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the non-breaching party within the thirty (30) days; or  

f). Should Hospital fail to pay Physician any monetary benefits as defined in this 
Agreement and/or fail to provide non-monetary benefits as defined in this Agreement, within ten 
(10) days of the date such amount was due and payable, Physician may terminate this Agreement 
by providing ten (10) days prior written notice.  

4.03. Rights Upon Termination. Upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, all rights and 
obligations of the parties shall cease except those rights and obligations that have accrued or 
expressly survive termination. Hospital shall retain the Accounts Receivable and shall reduce 
said receivable by the amount it has compensated physician in excess of the fees earned.  The 
balance shall be paid to the physician within forty-five (45) days of the termination of this 
Agreement.  

4.04. Post Termination Patient Care. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, until such 
time as the District has made medically appropriate referrals of any of Physician’s patients who 
continue to need her services, District shall continue to compensate Physician for the services 
that she renders to such patients at the rate of 50% of all fees collected for such services and shall 
pay within ten (10) days of receipt.  

 

5 

 



 

 
V.  

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS  

5.01. Medical Staff Membership. It is a condition of this Agreement that Physician maintains Active 
Medical Staff membership on the Hospital Medical Staff with appropriate clinical privileges and 
maintains such membership and privileges throughout the Term of this Agreement.  

5.02. Licensure and Standards. Physician shall:  

a) At all times be licensed to practice medicine in the State of California;  

b) Comply with all policies, bylaws, rules and regulations of Hospital, Hospital Medical Staff, 
and Practice, including those related to documenting all advice to patients and proper sign-off 
of lab and X-ray reports;  

c) Be a member in good standing of the Provisional or Active Medical Staff of Hospital;  

d) Maintain professional liability coverage in an amount required for membership on the Active 
Medical Staff of Hospital.  

e) Participate in continuing education as necessary to maintain licensure and the current standard 
of practice; and  

f) Comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of any and all governmental authorities, 
and applicable standards and recommendations of the Joint Commission on Accreditation of 
Healthcare Organizations.  

g) At all times conduct herself, professionally and publicly, the same as a reasonable physician 
acting under the same or similar circumstances, and in accordance with the standards of, the 
American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists, the Hospital Medical Staff, and the 
District. Further, she shall not violate any California law which prohibits (1) driving a motor 
vehicle under the influence of alcohol or prescription drugs or the combined influence of 
such substances, (2) unlawful use of controlled substances, (3) being intoxicated in a public 
place in such a condition as to be a danger to herself or others, and/or (4) conduct justifying 
imposition of an injunction prohibiting harassment of Hospital employees in their workplace. 
Entry of any injunction, judgment, or order against Physician based upon facts, which 
constitutes the above offenses, shall be a material breach of this Agreement.  

 
5.03 Amendment of Standards. None of the policies, bylaws, rules and regulations of Hospital, 

Hospital Medical Staff, or Practice shall be altered without Physician’s consent. [(or, as a backup 
position) shall be altered without providing Physician advance notice and a meaningful 
opportunity to object.]  

VI.  

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES  

6.01. Professional Relations.  

a) Independent Contractor. No relationship of employer and employee is created by this 
Agreement. In the performance of Physician’s work and duties, Physician is at all times 
acting and performing as an independent contractor, practicing the profession of medicine.  

6 

 



 

District shall neither have nor exercise control or direction over the methods by which 
Physician performs professional services pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, that 
Physician agrees that all work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall be in strict 
accordance with currently approved methods and practices in Physician’s professional 
specialty and in accordance with the standards set forth in this Agreement.  

b) Benefits. Except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, it is understood and agreed that 
Physician shall have no claims under this Agreement or otherwise against Hospital for social 
security benefits, worker’s compensation benefits, or any other employee benefit of any kind. 
In addition, Hospital shall have no obligation to reimburse Physician for any costs or 
expenses associated with Physician’s compliance with continuing medical education 
requirements.  

6.02. Responsibility for Own Acts. Each party will be responsible for its own acts or omissions and all 
claims, liabilities, injuries, suits, demands and expenses for all kinds which may result or arise 
out of any malfeasance or neglect, caused or alleged to have been caused by either party, their 
employees or representatives, in the performance or omission of any act or responsibility of 
either party under this contract. In the event that a claim is made against both parties, it is the 
intent of both parties to cooperate in the defense of said claim and to cause their insurers to do 
likewise. However, both parties shall have the right to take any and all actions they believe 
necessary to protect their interest.   

 
6.03  Disclosure of Physician’s Information. Neither District nor Hospital may disclose any 

information provided by, or about, Physician in connection with any credentialing or peer review 
deliberations unless such disclosure is otherwise required by law.  

 
VII.  

GENERAL PROVISIONS  
 
7.01.   No Competition. For a period of six (6) months after this Agreement has been terminated by 

District for cause, Physician will not, directly or indirectly, solicit or accept employment with the 
same or similar duties as under this Agreement, with any person, medical group or any other 
entity that is a competitor with District, or enter into competition with District, either by herself 
or through any entity owned or managed, in whole or in part by Physician within a thirty (30) 
mile radius of Hospital. Physician further acknowledges that in the event this section is 
determined to be unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the parties agree that this 
provision shall be deemed to be amended to any lesser area or duration as determined by any 
court of competent jurisdiction and that the remaining provisions shall be valid and enforceable.  

 
7.02.   Access to Records. To the extent required by Section 1861(v)(i)(I) of the Social Security Act, as 

amended, and by valid regulation which is directly applicable to that Section, Physician agrees to 
make available upon valid written request from the Secretary of HHS, the Comptroller General, 
or any other duly authorized representatives, this Agreement and the books, documents and 
records of Physician to the extent that such books, documents and records are necessary to certify 
the nature and extent of Hospital’s costs for services provided by Physician.  

Physician shall also make available such subcontract and the books, documents, and records of 
any subcontractor if that subcontractor performs any of the Physician’s duties under this 
Agreement at a cost of $10,000.00 or more over a twelve (12) month period and if that 

7 

 



 

subcontractor is organizationally related to Physician.  

Such books, documents, and records shall be preserved and available for four (4) years after the 
furnishing of services by Physician pursuant to this Agreement. If Physician is requested to 
disclose books, documents or records pursuant to this subsection for purposes of an audit, 
Physician shall notify Hospital of the nature and scope of such request, and Physician shall make 
available, upon written request of Hospital, all such books, documents or records.  Physician 
shall indemnify and hold harmless Hospital in the event that any amount of reimbursement is 
denied or disallowed because of the failure of Physician or any subcontractor to comply with its 
obligations to maintain and make available books, documents, or records pursuant to this 
subsection. Such indemnity shall include, but not be limited to the amount of reimbursement 
denied, plus any interest, penalties and legal costs.  

This section is intended to assure compliance with Section 1861 of the Social Security Act, as 
amended, and regulations directly pertinent to that Act. The obligations of Physician under this 
section are strictly limited to compliance with those provisions, and shall be given effect only to 
the extent necessary to insure compliance with those provisions. In the event that the 
requirements or those provisions are reduced or eliminated, the obligations of the parties under 
this section shall likewise be reduced or eliminated.  
 

7.03. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the parties, but  
           any such amendment must be in writing, dated, and signed by both parties.   
 
7.04. No Referral Fees. No payment or other consideration shall be made under this Agreement for the 

referral of patients, by Physician, to Hospital or to any nonprofit corporation affiliated with 
District.  

7.05. Repayment of Inducement. The parties stipulate and agree that the income guaranteed to 
Physician under this Agreement, the covenants of the District to provide office space, and the 
covenant of Hospital to provide personal, equipment, and certain other benefits, are the minimum 
required to enable Physician to relocate herself and her practice to Bishop, California; that she is 
not able to repay such inducement, and that no such repayment shall be required.  

7.06. Assignment. Physician shall not assign, sell, transfer or delegate any of the Physician’s rights or 
duties, including by hiring or otherwise retaining additional physicians to perform services 
pursuant to this Agreement, without the prior written consent of Hospital.  

7.07. Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced, by either party, to enforce 
rights, duties, and/or responsibilities under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled 
to recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs.  

7.08. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws 
of the State of California.  

7.09. Exhibits. All Exhibits attached and referred to herein are fully incorporated by this reference.  
 
7.10. Notices. All notices or other communications under this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at 

the addresses set forth below:  
 

8 

 



 

Notice may be given either personally or by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the 
party designated above at the address designated above, or an address subsequently specified in 
writing by the relevant party. If given by mail, notice shall be deemed given two (2) days after 
the date of the postmark on the envelope containing such notice.  

7.11. Records. All files, charts and records, medical or otherwise, generated by Physician in connection 
with services furnished during the Term of this Agreement are the property of Physician’s 
Practice. Physician agrees to maintain medical records according to Practice policies and 
procedures and in accordance with community standards. Each party agrees to maintain the 
confidentiality of all records and materials in accordance with all applicable state and federal 
laws. Hospital agrees to permit Physician to have access, during or after the Term of the 
Agreement, to medical records generated by Physician if necessary in connection with claims, 
litigation, investigations, or treatment of patients.  

7.12. Prior Agreements. This Agreement represents the entire understanding and agreement of the 
parties as to those matters contained in it. No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any 
force or effect with respect to the matters contained in this Agreement.   

7.13. Referrals. This Agreement does not impose any obligation or requirement that Hospital shall make 
any referral of patients to Physician or that Physician shall make any referral of patients to 
Hospital. The payment of compensation pursuant to section 3.01 is not based in any way on 
referrals of patients to Hospital.  

7.14. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal or unenforceable, that 
provision shall be severed from this Agreement, and the remaining provisions shall remain 
enforceable between the parties.  

7.15. Waiver. The failure of either party to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not operate as a 
waiver of that right.  

7.16. Gender and Number. Use of the masculine gender shall mean the feminine or neuter, and    the 
plural number the singular, and vice versa, as the context shall indicate.  

7.17. Authority and Executive. By their signature below, each of the parties represent that they have the 
authority to execute this Agreement and do hereby bind the party on whose behalf their execution 
is made.  

7.18. Construction. This Agreement has been negotiated and prepared by both parties and it shall be 
assumed, in the interpretation of any uncertainty, that both parties caused it to exist.  

 

 
9 

 



 

 This agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of 
which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

 
                                                                                                                    
 
 
NORTHERN INYO COUNTY   
LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT: 
 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________                       
      Victoria Alexander-Lane 
      Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PHYSICIAN: 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
  Martha Kim, MD 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 

 



 

EXHIBIT A SCOPE OF DUTIES OF THE PHYSICIAN  

POSITION SUMMARY  

The Physician is a Member of the Northern Inyo Hospital Active Medical Staff and the Clinic multi-
disciplinary care team.  Physician provides direct primary medical diagnosis and treatment to Practice 
and Hospital patients.  The Physician will provide services commensurate with the equivalent of a full 
time Obstetrical and Gynecological Practice. Full time shall mean regularly scheduled office hours to 
meet the service area demand and performance of surgeries as may be required. All time off will be 
coordinated with Call coverage such that scheduled time off will not conflict with the Physician's call 
requirement.  

Specifically, the Physician will:  

1. Provide high quality primary medical care services.  

2. Direct the need for on-going educational programs that serve the patient.  

3. Evaluate and develop treatment plans to facilitate the individual healthcare needs of each patient.  

4. Work with all Practice personnel to meet the healthcare needs of all patients.  

5. Assess, evaluate, and monitor on-going health care and medication of Practice patients.  

6. Manage all Obstetrical and Gynecological medical and surgical emergencies.  

7. Participate in professional development activities and maintain professional affiliations.  

8. Participate with Hospital to meet all federal and state Rural Health Clinic regulations.  

9. Accept emergency call as provided herein.  

11 

 



 

 
 NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL PRIVATE PRACTICE PHYSICIAN 

INCOME GUARANTEE AND PRACTICE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT  

 

This agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on 4/30/2015, by and between Northern 
Inyo County Local Hospital District (“District) and Lara Jeanine Arndal, M.D. (“Physician”).  

  
RECITALS  

A.  District, which is organized and exists under the California Local Health Care District 
Law, Health & Safety Code Section 32000, et seq., operates Northern Inyo Hospital 
(“Hospital”), a general acute care hospital serving northern Inyo County, California, 
including the communities of Bishop and Big Pine.  

B.  The District Board of Directors has found, by Resolution No. 09-01, that it will be in the 
best interest of the public health of the aforesaid communities to obtain a licensed 
Obstetrician Gynecologist (“OB/GYN”) to practice in said communities, on the terms and 
conditions and surgeon who is a board-certified/eligible specialist in the practice of 
obstetrics and set forth below.  

C.  Physician is a physician and surgeon, engaged in the private practice of medicine, licensed 
to practice medicine in the State of California, and will be certified by the American Board 
of Obstetrics and Gynecology within five years of completing residency. Physician desires 
to relocate his/her practice ("Practice") to Bishop, California, and practice OB/GYN in the 
aforesaid communities.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

I.  

COVENANTS OF PHYSICIAN  

Physician shall locate her Practice to medical offices (“Offices”) provided by District in Bishop, 
California. Physician shall operate her practice for the “Term” (as such term is defined in Section 4.01 
below) of this Agreement, and provide and comply with the following:  

1.01.  Services. Physician shall provide Hospital with the benefit of her direct patient care expertise and 
experience, and shall render the scope of services described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference herein. Physician shall provide Hospital with patient medical record 
documentation of all direct patient care services rendered hereunder; such documentation shall be 
submitted to Hospital on an ongoing basis, and shall be in the form, and contain the information, 
reasonably requested by the Hospital such that a complete medical record can be assembled.  

1.02.  Limitation on Use of Space. Physician shall use no part of any of the Offices for anything other 
than for the private practice of OB/GYN medicine unless specifically agreed to, in writing, by the 
parties.  

 
 

1 

 



 

 
1.03.    Medical Staff Membership and Service:  Physician shall:  

a) Apply for and maintain Provisional or Active Medical Staff (“Medical Staff”) membership 
with OB/GYN and OB/GYN surgical privileges sufficient to support a full time OB/GYN 
practice, for the Term of this Agreement.  

b) Provide on-call coverage to the Hospital’s Emergency Services within the scope of privileges 
granted to him/her by Hospital and as required by the Hospital Medical Staff. Physician shall 
not be required to provide more than fifty percent (50%) of the annual call in weekly 
increments unless otherwise agreed upon from time to time. Physician shall be solely 
responsible for call coverage for his or her personal private practice.  

c) Maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to all costs and expenses 
incurred, and revenue acquired, pursuant to this Agreement to the extent, and in such detail, 
as will properly reflect all net costs, direct and indirect, of labor, materials, equipment, 
supplies, and services, and other costs and expenses of whatever nature, for which he/she 
may claim payment or reimbursement from the District. Physician acknowledges and agrees 
that any federal office authorized by law shall have access, for the purpose of audit and 
examination, to any books, documents, papers, and records of Physician which are relevant to 
this Agreement, at all reasonable times for a period of four (4) years following the 
termination of this Agreement, during which period Physician shall preserve and maintain 
said books, documents, papers, and records. Physician further agrees to transfer to the 
District, upon termination of this Agreement, any books, documents, papers or records which 
possess long-term [i.e., more than four (4) years] value to the Hospital. Physician shall 
include a clause providing similar access in any sub-contract he/she may enter with a value of 
more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) or for more than a twelve (12) month period, 
when said sub-contract is with a related organization.  

d) At all times comply with all relevant policies, rules and regulations of the Hospital, subject to 
California and federal statutes governing the practice of medicine.  

e) District expressly agrees that said services might be performed by such other qualified 
physicians as the Physician may employ or otherwise provide so long as each such physician 
has received proper training, is properly licensed, has been granted privileges by the Hospital 
Medical Staff, and has received approval in writing from the Hospital.  

 

II. COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT  

2.01. Hospital Services.  

a)  Space. District shall make the Offices available for the operation of Physician’s Practice 
either through a direct let or through and arrangement with a landlord.  

b)  Equipment. In consultation with Physician, Hospital shall provide all equipment as may be 
reasonably necessary for the proper operation and conduct of Physician's Practice at the 
Offices. Hospital shall repair, replace or supplement such equipment and maintain it in good 
working order.  

 

2 

 



 

 
 
2.02.  General Services. District shall furnish ordinary janitorial services, maintenance services, and 

utilities, including telephone service, as may be required for the proper operation and conduct of 
Physician’s Practice 

 
 
2.03.  Supplies. District shall purchase and provide all supplies as may be reasonably required for the 

proper treatment of Physician’s Practice patients. Physician shall inform Hospital of supply needs 
in a timely manner and shall manage the use of supplies in an efficient manner that promotes 
quality and cost-effective patient care.  

2.04.  Personnel. District shall determine the initial number and types of employees and place them in 
the Practice initially. Physician and Hospital will mutually agree to subsequent staffing 
requirements.  

2.05.  Business Operations. District shall be responsible for all business operations related to operation 
of the Practice, including personnel management, billing and payroll functions. Physician will 
provide the appropriate billing codes, which will be used unless changed by the mutual consent 
of the Physician and Hospital. Hospital will incur and pay all operating expenses of the Practice.  

2.06.  Hospital Performance. The responsibilities of District under this Article shall be subject to 
District’s usual purchasing practices and applicable laws and regulations.  

2.07.  Practice Hours. The District desires, and Physician agrees, that Physician’s Practice shall 
operate on a full time basis, maintaining hours of operation in keeping with the full time practice 
of one OB/GYN surgeon while permitting a surgery schedule sufficient to service the patients of 
the Practice. Specific shifts will be scheduled according to normal operating procedures of the 
Practice and will be mutually agreed upon by Hospital and Physician.  

Physician will specifically provide a total of 40 weeks per year allocated, on an annual and 
concurrent basis, as follows:  

• 26 weeks of GYN call/ 20 weeks of OB/C-Section call. (OB/C-Section call can be 
increased to 20-26    weeks at Hospital’s discretion);  

• 40 weeks of clinic service; and  

• 26 weeks of surgical services.  
 

Physician shall receive 12 weeks per year paid time off during which time Physician must 
accomplish any licensure, CME, and any other absence hours-such as vacation, illness, jury duty, 
bereavement, etc.  

Physician agrees to coordinate his/her schedule with any other physician(s) contracted by the 
Hospital for like services. 

 
The Parties understand and agree that Physician is not responsible for providing, and will not 
provide, call coverage under any circumstances other than (i) as required by the Medical Staff 
Bylaw’s requirements and (ii) that for which he/she is obligated under the terms of this 

3 

 



 

Agreement.  
 

III.  

COMPENSATION  

3.01. Minimum Income Guarantee. At all times during the Term of this Agreement, including any 
extensions or renewals hereof, District, District shall guarantee Physician an annual income of no 
less than $295,625.20 (“Minimum Income Guarantee”). Compensation from District shall be 
payable to Physician at the higher of (a) the Minimum Income Guarantee amount paid at the rate 
of $11,370.20 every two (2) weeks, or (b) 50% of fees collected for services rendered in Section 
II, adjusted quarterly after the first year to reflect 50% of fees collected so that payments will not 
exceed the minimum guarantee unless 50% of the fees exceed the guarantee on an annualized 
basis. Additionally, Physician will be entitled to a $500 per day stipend for taking any C-Section 
call in excess of 20 weeks per year. All payments shall be made on the same date as the District 
normally pays its employees. The Minimum Income Guarantee amount will be increased at the 
same time, in the same manner and at the same rate as the Hospital’s employees.  

3.02. Malpractice Insurance. At all times during the Term of this Agreement, including any extensions 
or renewals hereof, District will secure and maintain malpractice insurance for the benefit of the 
physician with limits of no less than $1 million per occurrence and $3 million per year. Tail 
coverage will also be provided.  

 
3.03. Health Insurance. At all times during the Term of this Agreement, including any extensions or 

renewals hereof, Physician will be (i) admitted to the Hospital's self-funded Medical Dental 
Vision Benefit Plan and be provided the benefits contained therein as if he/she were an employee 
of District and (ii) provided a disability program until age 65 in an amount equal to the higher of 
(x) $10,000.00 per month or (y) the average benefit received by all other OB/GYN physicians 
who are in similar contractual relationships with Hospital and who are receiving disability 
benefits.  

  
 
3.04.  Practice Liaison. Physician will receive $500 per month for acting a the practice liaison   

and Publishing all the call schedules related to the OB/GYN service. Physician will receive 
$150 of every 1 hour class provided to the hospital OB nursing unit staff. Sign in and 
curriculum is required for payment. 

 
3.05. Billing for Professional Services. Subject to Section 2.05 above, Physician assigns to District all 

claims, demands and rights of Physician to bill and collect for all professional services rendered 
to Practice patients, for all billings for surgical services, for all billings consulting performed or 
provided by the Physician. Physician acknowledges that Hospital shall be solely responsible for 
billing and collecting for all professional services provided by Physician to Practice patients at 
Practice and for all surgical services performed at the District, and for managing all Practice 
receivables and payables, including those related to Medicare and MediCal beneficiaries. 
Physician shall not bill or collect for any services rendered to Practice patients or Hospital 
patients, and all Practice receivables and billings shall be the sole and exclusive property of 
Practice. In particular, any payments made pursuant to a payer agreement (including co-payments 
made by patients) shall constitute revenue of the Practice. In the event payments are made to 

4 

 



 

Physician pursuant to any payer agreement, Physician shall promptly remit the payments directly 
to District.  

3.06   Retention. Hospital shall retain an amount equal to 50% of all fees collected from the activities of 
physician/practice in exchange for providing all services and supplies rendered in II above.  

 
IV.  

TERM AND TERMINATION  

4.01. Term. The term (“Term”) of this Agreement shall be three (3) years beginning at 12:01 a.m. on 
5/1/2015 and expiring at 12:00 p.m. on 4/30/2018.  

4.02. Termination. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.01, this Agreement may be terminated:  

a). By Hospital or Physician at any time, without cause or penalty, upon one hundred and 
eighty (180) days’ prior written notice to the Hospital;  

b). Immediately by Hospital in its sole discretion if Physician fails to maintain the 
professional standards described in Article V of this Agreement;  

c). Immediately upon permanent closure of the Hospital;  

d). By either party upon written notice to the other party in the event that any federal, 
state or local government or agency passes, issues or promulgates any law, rule, regulation, 
standard or interpretation at any time while this Agreement is in effect that prohibits, 
substantially restricts, substantially limits or in any way substantially changes the arrangement 
contemplated herein or which otherwise significantly affects either party’s rights or obligations 
under this Agreement; provided that in such event, Hospital must give notice to Physician equal 
to that provided to Hospital by the relevant federal, state or local government or agency. If this 
Agreement can be amended to the satisfaction of both parties to compensate for any such 
prohibition, restriction, limitation or change, this clause shall not be interpreted to prevent such 
amendment; or  

e). By either party in the event of a material breach by the other party and, in such event, 
the non-breaching party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement after providing thirty 
(30) days’ written notice to the breaching party, unless such breach is cured to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the non-breaching party within the thirty (30) days; or  

f). Should Hospital fail to pay Physician any monetary benefits as defined in this 
Agreement and/or fail to provide non-monetary benefits as defined in this Agreement, within ten 
(10) days of the date such amount was due and payable, Physician may terminate this Agreement 
by providing ten (10) days prior written notice.  

4.03. Rights Upon Termination. Upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, all rights and 
obligations of the parties shall cease except those rights and obligations that have accrued or 
expressly survive termination. Hospital shall retain the Accounts Receivable and shall reduce 
said receivable by the amount it has compensated physician in excess of the fees earned.  The 
balance shall be paid to the physician within forty-five (45) days of the termination of this 
Agreement.  

4.04. Post Termination Patient Care. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, until such 

5 

 



 

time as the District has made medically appropriate referrals of any of Physician’s patients who 
continue to need his/her services, District shall continue to compensate Physician for the services 
that he/she renders to such patients at the rate of 50% of all fees collected for such services and 
shall pay within ten (10) days of receipt.  

V.  

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS  

5.01. Medical Staff Membership. It is a condition of this Agreement that Physician maintains Active 
Medical Staff membership on the Hospital Medical Staff with appropriate clinical privileges and 
maintains such membership and privileges throughout the Term of this Agreement.  

5.02. Licensure and Standards. Physician shall:  

a) At all times be licensed to practice medicine in the State of California;  

b) Comply with all policies, bylaws, rules and regulations of Hospital, Hospital Medical Staff, 
and Practice, including those related to documenting all advice to patients and proper sign-off 
of lab and X-ray reports;  

c) Be a member in good standing of the Provisional or Active Medical Staff of Hospital;  

d) Maintain professional liability coverage in an amount required for membership on the Active 
Medical Staff of Hospital, at District’s sole expense;  

e) Participate in continuing education as necessary to maintain licensure and the current standard 
of practice; and  

f) Comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of any and all governmental authorities, 
and applicable standards and recommendations of the Joint Commission.  

g) At all times conduct himself/herself, professionally and publicly, the same as a reasonable 
physician acting under the same or similar circumstances, and in accordance with the 
standards of, the American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists, the Hospital Medical 
Staff, and the District. Further, he/she shall not violate any California law which prohibits (1) 
driving a motor vehicle under the influence of alcohol or prescription drugs or the combined 
influence of such substances, (2) unlawful use of controlled substances, (3) being intoxicated 
in a public place in such a condition as to be a danger to themselves or others, and/or (4) 
conduct justifying imposition of an injunction prohibiting harassment of Hospital employees 
in their workplace. Entry of any injunction, judgment, or order against Physician based upon 
facts, which constitutes the above offenses, shall be a material breach of this Agreement.  

 
5.03 Amendment of Standards. None of the policies, bylaws, rules and regulations of Hospital, 

Hospital Medical Staff, or Practice shall be altered without Physician’s consent. [(or, as a backup 
position) shall be altered without providing Physician advance notice and a meaningful 
opportunity to object.]  

VI.  

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES  

6.01. Professional Relations.  

6 

 



 

a) Independent Contractor. No relationship of employer and employee is created by this 
Agreement. In the performance of Physician’s work and duties, Physician is at all times 
acting and performing as an independent contractor, practicing the profession of medicine.  
District shall neither have nor exercise control or direction over the methods by which 
Physician performs professional services pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, that 
Physician agrees that all work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall be in strict 
accordance with currently approved methods and practices in Physician’s professional 
specialty and in accordance with the standards set forth in this Agreement.  

b) Benefits. Except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, it is understood and agreed that 
Physician shall have no claims under this Agreement or otherwise against Hospital for social 
security benefits, worker’s compensation benefits, or any other employee benefit of any kind. 
In addition, Hospital shall have no obligation to reimburse Physician for any costs or 
expenses associated with Physician’s compliance with continuing medical education 
requirements.  

6.02. Responsibility for Own Acts. Each party will be responsible for its own acts or omissions and all 
claims, liabilities, injuries, suits, demands and expenses for all kinds which may result or arise 
out of any malfeasance or neglect, caused or alleged to have been caused by either party, their 
employees or representatives, in the performance or omission of any act or responsibility of 
either party under this contract. In the event that a claim is made against both parties, it is the 
intent of both parties to cooperate in the defense of said claim and to cause their insurers to do 
likewise. However, both parties shall have the right to take any and all actions they believe 
necessary to protect their interest.   

 
6.03  Disclosure of Physician’s Information. Neither District nor Hospital may disclose any 

information provided by, or about, Physician in connection with any credentialing or peer review 
deliberations unless such disclosure is otherwise required by law.  

 

VII.  

GENERAL PROVISIONS  

7.01.   No Competition. For a period of six (6) months after this Agreement has been terminated by 
District for cause, Physician will not, directly or indirectly, solicit or accept employment with the 
same or similar duties as under this Agreement, with any person, medical group or any other 
entity that is a competitor with District, or enter into competition with District, either by 
himself/herself or through any entity owned or managed, in whole or in part by Physician within 
a sixty (60) mile radius of Hospital. Physician further acknowledges that in the event this section 
is determined to be unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the parties agree that this 
provision shall be deemed to be amended to any lesser area or duration as determined by any 
court of competent jurisdiction and that the remaining provisions shall be valid and enforceable.  

 
7.02.   Access to Records. To the extent required by Section 1861(v)(i)(I) of the Social Security Act, as 

amended, and by valid regulation which is directly applicable to that Section, Physician agrees to 
make available upon valid written request from the Secretary of HHS, the Comptroller General, 
or any other duly authorized representatives, this Agreement and the books, documents and 
records of Physician to the extent that such books, documents and records are necessary to certify 

7 

 



 

the nature and extent of Hospital’s costs for services provided by Physician.  

Physician shall also make available such subcontract and the books, documents, and records of 
any subcontractor if that subcontractor performs any of the Physician’s duties under this 
Agreement at a cost of $10,000.00 or more over a twelve (12) month period and if that 
subcontractor is organizationally related to Physician.  

Such books, documents, and records shall be preserved and available for four (4) years after the 
furnishing of services by Physician pursuant to this Agreement. If Physician is requested to 
disclose books, documents or records pursuant to this subsection for purposes of an audit, 
Physician shall notify Hospital of the nature and scope of such request, and Physician shall make 
available, upon written request of Hospital, all such books, documents or records.  Physician 
shall indemnify and hold harmless Hospital in the event that any amount of reimbursement is 
denied or disallowed because of the failure of Physician or any subcontractor to comply with its 
obligations to maintain and make available books, documents, or records pursuant to this 
subsection. Such indemnity shall include, but not be limited to the amount of reimbursement 
denied, plus any interest, penalties and legal costs.  

This section is intended to assure compliance with Section 1861 of the Social Security Act, as 
amended, and regulations directly pertinent to that Act. The obligations of Physician under this 
section are strictly limited to compliance with those provisions, and shall be given effect only to 
the extent necessary to insure compliance with those provisions. In the event that the 
requirements or those provisions are reduced or eliminated, the obligations of the parties under 
this section shall likewise be reduced or eliminated.  
 

7.03. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the parties, but 
any such amendment must be in writing, dated, and signed by both parties.   
 
7.04. No Referral Fees. No payment or other consideration shall be made under this Agreement for the 

referral of patients, by Physician, to Hospital or to any nonprofit corporation affiliated with 
District.  

7.05. Repayment of Inducement. The parties stipulate and agree that the income guaranteed to 
Physician under this Agreement, the covenants of the District to provide office space, and the 
covenant of Hospital to provide personal, equipment, and certain other benefits, are the minimum 
required to enable Physician to relocate himself/herself and the practice to Bishop, California; 
that he/she is not able to repay such inducement, and that no such repayment shall be required.  

7.06. Assignment. Physician shall not assign, sell, transfer or delegate any of the Physician’s rights or 
duties, including by hiring or otherwise retaining additional physicians to perform services 
pursuant to this Agreement, without the prior written consent of Hospital.  

7.07. Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced, by either party, to enforce 
rights, duties, and/or responsibilities under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled 
to recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs.  

7.08. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws 
of the State of California.  

8 

 



 

7.09. Exhibits. All Exhibits attached and referred to herein are fully incorporated by this reference.  
 
7.10. Notices. All notices or other communications under this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at 

the addresses set forth below:  
 

 
Hospital:  CEO, Northern Inyo Hospital  

150 Pioneer Lane  
Bishop, CA 93514  

 
Physician:  Lara Jeanine Arndal, MD      

2626 Sierra Vista Way 
Bishop, CA 93514                                                                                                                            

 
 
7.07. Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced, by either party, to enforce 

rights, duties, and/or responsibilities under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled 
to recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs.  

7.08. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws 
of the State of California.  

7.09. Exhibits. All Exhibits attached and referred to herein are fully incorporated by this reference.  
 
7.10. Notices. All notices or other communications under this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at 

the addresses set forth below:  
 

Hospital:  CEO, Northern Inyo Hospital  
150 Pioneer Lane  
Bishop, CA 93514  

 
Physician:  Lara Jeanine Arndal, MD      

2626 Sierra Vista Way 
Bishop, CA 93514                                                                                                                            

9 

 



 

Notice may be given either personally or by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party 
designated above at the address designated above, or an address subsequently specified in writing by the 
relevant party. If given by mail, notice shall be deemed given two (2) days after the date of the postmark 
on the envelope containing such notice.  

7.11. Records. All files, charts and records, medical or otherwise, generated by Physician in connection 
with services furnished during the Term of this Agreement are the property of Physician’s 
Practice. Physician agrees to maintain medical records according to Practice policies and 
procedures and in accordance with community standards. Each party agrees to maintain the 
confidentiality of all records and materials in accordance with all applicable state and federal 
laws. Hospital agrees to permit Physician to have access, during or after the Term of the 
Agreement, to medical records generated by Physician if necessary in connection with claims, 
litigation, investigations, or treatment of patients.  

7.12. Prior Agreements. This Agreement represents the entire understanding and agreement of the 
parties as to those matters contained in it. No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any 
force or effect with respect to the matters contained in this Agreement.   

7.13. Referrals. This Agreement does not impose any obligation or requirement that Hospital shall make 
any referral of patients to Physician or that Physician shall make any referral of patients to 
Hospital. The payment of compensation pursuant to section 3.01 is not based in any way on 
referrals of patients to Hospital.  

7.14. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal or unenforceable, that 
provision shall be severed from this Agreement, and the remaining provisions shall remain 
enforceable between the parties.  

7.15. Waiver. The failure of either party to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not operate as a 
waiver of that right.  

7.16. Gender and Number. Use of the masculine gender shall mean the feminine or neuter, and the 
plural number the singular, and vice versa, as the context shall indicate.  

7.17. Authority and Executive. By their signature below, each of the parties represent that they have the 
authority to execute this Agreement and do hereby bind the party on whose behalf their execution 
is made.  

7.18. Construction. This Agreement has been negotiated and prepared by both parties and it shall be 
assumed, in the interpretation of any uncertainty, that both parties caused it to exist.  

 This agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of 
which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
 
 
 
 

10 

 



 

 
 
 
NORTHERN INYO COUNTY   
LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT: 
 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________                       
      Victoria Alexander-Lane 
      Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
PHYSICIAN: 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
      Lara Jeanine Arndal, M.D. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11 

 



 

EXHIBIT A SCOPE OF DUTIES OF THE PHYSICIAN  

POSITION SUMMARY  

The Physician is a Member of the Northern Inyo Hospital Active Medical Staff and the Clinic multi-
disciplinary care team.  Physician provides direct primary medical diagnosis and treatment to Practice 
and Hospital patients.  The Physician will provide services commensurate with the equivalent of a full 
time Obstetrical and Gynecological Practice. Full time shall mean regularly scheduled office hours to 
meet the service area demand and performance of surgeries as may be required. All time off will be 
coordinated with Call coverage such that scheduled time off will not conflict with the Physician's call 
requirement.  

Specifically, the Physician will:  

1. Provide high quality primary medical care services.  

2. Direct the need for on-going educational programs that serve the patient.  

3. Evaluate and develop treatment plans to facilitate the individual healthcare needs of each patient.  

4. Work with all Practice personnel to meet the healthcare needs of all patients.  

5. Assess, evaluate, and monitor on-going health care and medication of Practice patients.  

6. Manage all Obstetrical and Gynecological medical and surgical emergencies.  

7. Participate in professional development activities and maintain professional affiliations.  

8. Participate with Hospital to meet all federal and state Rural Health Clinic regulations.  

9. Accept emergency call as provided herein.  

12 

 



 

 

13 

 






























